Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please
contact:
Democratic Services: 020 8547 5846
democratic.services@kingston.gov.uk
This agenda is available on:
www.kingston.gov.uk
Published on 28 June 2021

Licensing Sub-Committee
Date:

Tuesday 6 July 2021

Time:

9:45 am

Place:

An online meeting that can be viewed at:
https://kingston.publici.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/577205
Members

The Sub Committee will consist of three of the following Members; Councillors: Kim Bailey, Lorraine Dunstone, Simon Edwards, Ed Fram, Hilary Gander, Ian
George, Dennis Goodship, Lesley Heap , Katrina Lidbetter, Dave Ryder-Mills, Malcolm
Self, John Sweeney, Margaret Thompson, Jon Tolley and Olly Wehring.

Everyone is welcome to view the meeting

Agenda
Changes to the Application
The applicants are advised of issues raised in representations from residents and the
Responsible Authorities - Police, Fire Service, Environmental Health, Noise and Health
and Safety. In discussions with the various parties on these the applicant may agree to
accept conditions and/or propose changes to the original application.
The law allows discussions to continue up to the time of the Licensing Sub-committee
hearing, often in good time before the hearing. As a result of these discussions, changes
to the original application may have been made and representations may have been
withdrawn. It will not always be possible to include these emendations in the agenda. The
hearing regulations require that should any party to the hearing wish to rely upon any
additional evidence, this should be served upon the Licensing Authority five days before
this hearing.
At the start of the hearing the Licensing Officer will explain any changes that the applicant
has made, conditions agreed with Responsible Authorities, and whether any additional
evidence has been served on the Licensing Authority.
Recording of the meeting
This meeting will be recorded and the recording will be available on the web site shortly
after (https://kingston.public-i.tv/core/portal/home).

1.

Appointment of Chair

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Minutes
To confirm that the minutes of the meeting held on 14 June 2021 are a correct
record.

4.

Taksim Lounge Turkish Restaurant, 78 Burlington Road, New
Malden, KT3 4NU

Appendix A

5.

Sufi's, 179 London Road, Kingston Upon Thames, KT2 6PA

Appendix B

6.

Urgent Items Authorised by the Chair

7.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
The following matters may be considered in private if the Committee agrees that,
under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public are excluded
from the meeting on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as defined
in paragraph 1 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed. This
paragraph covers information relating to any individual.

Procedure at Licensing Sub Committees
HEARING PROCEDURE
40.

The hearing will be broadcast live online for the duration of proceedings. A video recording
of the meeting will be published online shortly afterwards.

41.

The Sub-Committee Members will be assisted, where necessary, by:
1. Legal Advisor
2. Committee Secretary
3. and where appropriate, a Licensing representative – who is not party to the hearing

42.

The above officers are there to give advice and technical guidance to the Licensing SubCommittee and do not participate in the hearing or decisions other than to clarify legal or
technical matters. The Committee Secretary and Legal Advisor are the only officers who
retire with the Sub-Committee.

43.

The Licensing Officer is independent and there to provide specific advice relating to the
application before the Sub-Committee.

44.

A hearing will take the form of a discussion led by the Sub-Committee which will hear from
people in the following order:
1)

The Licensing Officer will outline the application, the representations that have been
made and the outcome of any discussions.

2)

The applicants or their representatives or witnesses.

3)

Relevant Responsible Authorities that are making representations.

4)

Other Persons being those persons or bodies (local residents/businesses) who are
making relevant representations or their representatives.

5)

The Petitioner (where a petition has been submitted) or one another interested party
that has signed the petition.

6)

The applicant makes the closing statement, if they wish.

45.

Where notice has been given to a party seeking clarification of an issue, further information
supporting this application, representation, or notice may be given at the hearing.

46.

In normal circumstances the Sub-Committee will allow up to 5 minutes for each party to
make his/her submission, but in certain circumstances, for example, where the issues are
more complex or where the applicant needs to respond to a considerable number of
objections or points, the Sub-Committee will allow greater time. The applicant will be given
at least equal time to all the objectors combined in order to make his/her case and clarify
issues. (For example, where there are two objectors this means that the applicant will be
entitled to 2 x 5 minutes = 10 minutes speaking time.) Applicants are also permitted
witnesses to speak in support of their application, where notice has been given to the
Licensing Authority 5 working days prior to the hearing, or at the hearing with the
permission of all parties. Applicants’ witnesses must share the applicant’s allocated
speaking time.

47.

If a local resident or business holder who has submitted a valid representation is unable to
attend the hearing they can nominate a representative to speak on their behalf. The
Licensing Authority must be informed in writing of the name of the representative 24 hours
before the hearing. The representative will be able to read the original letter of objection
and any statement given to them by the objector which amplifies or updates the comments
made in the letter. The representative will not be able to answer questions on behalf of the
objector. The 5 minute speaking time allowance will apply.

48.

If a local resident or business holder who has submitted a valid representation and attends
the hearing wishes to nominate someone to speak on their behalf, they must advise the
Committee Secretary of the name of their representative prior to the hearing. The
representative will be able to read the original letter of objection and any statement given to
them by the objector which amplifies or updates the comments made in the letter. The
representative will be able to answer questions on behalf of the objector after consulting
them on the answer to each question. The 5 minute speaking time allowance will apply.

49.

Cross-examination is generally not permitted. However, at the discretion of the Sub
Committee, questions may be permitted through the Chair only where the Sub-Committee
feel it necessary for the clarification of an issue or to elicit further information in a particular
case.

50.

The Sub-Committee are permitted to ask questions throughout the hearing of any party or
other person who appears as a witness or representative.

MAKING THE DECISION
51.

Once the Sub-Committee has heard from officers and the parties to the hearing and has
had answers to its questions, the Sub-Committee will usually withdraw to make its decision
on the application.

52.

On the day of the hearing, an email will be sent out to the applicants and other parties to
the hearing informing them of the decision. A full decision notice will be sent out to the
applicants and other parties to the hearing within 5 working days of the meeting, in
accordance with the statutory provisions.

53.

The Sub-Committee has a duty to behave impartially, not to predetermine the issue and not
to discuss matters with the media or any of the parties. In making its decision the SubCommittee must give reasons to support that decision. It must state in respect of premises
licenses why refusal or attachment of conditions is necessary in order to promote a
particular licensing objective, and in respect of all other applications the reasons why
applications are refused or revoked.

54.

The decision and reasons for the decision will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.
These will be circulated and will be made available on the Council’s website.

55.

Applicants and other parties who have made relevant representations to the hearing can
appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within twenty-one days of notification of the decision.
Details of how to appeal and the grounds on which an appeal may be made will be sent out
with the notification letter.

Background papers – held by Gary Marson – Democratic Services – 020 8547 5021, e-mail
gary.marson@kingston.gov.uk

A1

Appendix A

Licensing Sub Committee
6 JULY 2021
TAKSIM LOUNGE TURKISH RESTAURANT
78 BURLINGTON ROAD, NEW MALDEN, KT3 4NU

Application for a New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
Report by the Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader
PURPOSE
To determine the application, by Public Hearing, following receipt by the Licensing
Authority of relevant representations.
This sub-committee hearing is to consider the application, having regard to the
representation and relevant guidance, with the following options being available:
DECISION TO BE MADE:
1) Grant the application as it currently stands.
2) Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
3) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.
4) Reject the application.
INTRODUCTION
1. This application relating to Taksim Lounge Turkish Restaurant, 78 Burlington Road,
New Malden, KT3 4NU was made on 14 May 2021 by ESI Licensing and Legal
Consultancy Limited on behalf of Salar Sulaivani.
2. Initially, the application sought to provide the provision of regulated entertainment
(recorded music) and the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption on and off the
premises), Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 01:00 the following morning, and the
provision of late night refreshment, Monday to Sunday from 23:00 to 01:00 the
following morning.
3. Following discussions with Responsible Authorities, the application was amended and
it now seeks to provide the sale by retail of alcohol (for consumption on and off the
premises), Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 23:00.
A copy of the application form (as initially submitted) is attached at Annex 1.
4.

The proposed hours of operation (as amended) are laid out in Annex 2.

A2
CONSULTATION
5.

I confirm that the applicant has advertised the application by way of public notice
displayed at the premises, and in a local newspaper. The application has also been
made available on the Council’s website.

6.

I confirm that all Responsible Authorities received a copy of the application. The
Metropolitan Police, as the Responsible Authority for the Prevention of Crime and
Disorder licensing objective, Trading Standards, as the Responsible Authority for The
Protection of Children from Harm licensing objective, and the Council’s
Environmental Health (Noise Pollution) Officer, as the Responsible Authority for the
Prevention of Public Nuisance licensing objective, initially raised concerns regarding
the application. Following further consultation, the applicant has addressed the
concerns by making amendments to their operating schedule. These amendments
are reflected in the proposed hours of operation laid out in Annex 2 and in the
conditions shown in Annex 3 of this report. In light of these amendments the
representations made by Responsible Authorities have been satisfied and
subsequently withdrawn.

7.

In accordance with the Council’s Licensing Policy, 304 residents were consulted in
writing and informed that an application had been received. 36 valid representations
were received from Other Persons. When notified of the amendments made by the
applicant to their operating schedule, 3 representations were withdrawn, so the
number of outstanding representations to the application for consideration by the
Licensing Sub-Committee is 33. The representations make reference to matters that
relate to all four licensing objectives. Copies of the representations are attached at
Annex 4.

LOCATION
8.

A map showing the approximate location of the premises is attached as Annex 5,
with photographs attached as Annex 6.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES
9.

In considering this report the Sub-Committee is required to take into account the
Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003,
and our Licensing Policy (relevant paragraphs are produced at Annex 7) and the
licensing objectives of:





The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety
The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

DETERMINATION
10.

In making their decision in respect of the application, the Sub-Committee must have
regard to Statutory Guidance and the Councils’ own Statement of Licensing Policy
as well as to the representations made and the evidence heard. However, the SubCommittee must disregard any representations that do not relate to the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

A3
11.

The licensing sub-committee is asked to determine the application, having regard to
the representations received and any evidence heard at the hearing, in accordance
with the following options:


Grant the application as requested.



Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.



Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.



Reject the application.

CONDITIONS
12.

Mandatory Conditions. If granted, the licence would be subject to the mandatory
conditions laid down in the licensing Act 2003 (this information will be available to the
Sub-Committee meeting).

13.

Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule. In applying for a licence,
the applicant is required to complete an operating schedule. This describes the steps
the applicant proposes to take in order to promote the licensing objectives if the
application is granted. These steps which are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives will become conditions if the application is granted and are shown
in Annex 3. However, the Sub-Committee must, having regard to the representations
made, modify these conditions, if it considers that such a step is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

CONTENT OF ANNEXES TO THIS REPORT
Annex 1
Annex 2
Annex 3
Annex 4
Annex 5
Annex 6
Annex 7

Application Form
Proposed hours of operation
Conditions arising from applicant’s Operating Schedule
Representations from Other Persons
Location Plan
Photographs of Location
Excerpts from Secretary of State’s Guidance and Kingston’s Statement of
Licensing Policy

BACKGROUND papers are held by Marcella Basso, Environmental Protection Officer - 020
8547 5080, marcella.basso@kingston.gov.uk

A4

A5

A6

A7

A8

A9

A10

A11

A12

A13

A14

A15

A16

A17

A18

A19
Continued from previous page...

Section 19 of 21
NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK
Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:
•
does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
•
is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work
checking service (see below).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

•

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

•

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•
•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

•

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

A20
Continued from previous page...

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

•

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

•

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

•

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

•

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

•
•

evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
•
evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i)
working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii)
self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii)
studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv)
self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

A21
Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.
Home Office online right to work checking service
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-rightto-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority
to carry out the check.
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service
should submit copy documents as set out above.
Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

A22
Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

A23

A24

A25

A26

A27

ANNEX 3
Conditions arising from applicant’s Operating Schedule
The prevention of crime & disorder
Closed-circuit television
1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive closed-circuit television system
(CCTV).
a) All recordings shall be stored for a minimum of 31 days with date and time stamping.
b) Recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.
c) The digital CCTV will cover all areas to where public have access, including the
external areas that the public have access too.
d) CCTV will be recording at all times when premises is open, and the recordings will
be of evidential quality in all lighting conditions and be of a sufficient quality to produce
in court of hearing.
e) All images downloaded from the CCTV must be provided in a format which can be
viewed on regularly available equipment without the need for specialist software.
f) At all times the premises is open to the public a minimum of one member of staff on
duty will be able to operate the CCTV.
g) The CCTV system shall be maintained in effective working order.
h) Suitable signage shall be displayed at the premises in a prominent position as
customers enter the premises stating that CCTV is in operation.
Glass/bottles
2. There will be clear signs on display indicating it will not be permitted for glass wear to
leave the premises.
Restaurant conditions
3. The premises will be used primarily as a restaurant.
4. Alcohol may only be sold to those persons who are seated and taking a table meal.
Alcohol, restrictions on sale
5. No vertical drinking will take place in the premises at any time.
Off-Sales
6. Alcohol sold for consumption off the premises may only be sold in sealed containers.
7. Off sales are only permitted with customer collections or home deliveries of a substantive
meal and shall be limited to a maximum of 8 cans / bottles of beer, lager or cider and 2
bottles of wine.
Incident log
8. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available immediately upon
request by an authorised officer of the Council or the Police, which will record the
following:
a) all crimes reported to the venue;
b) all ejections of patrons;
c) any incidents of disorder;
d) any faults in the CCTV system;
e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

A28
Plans
9. A plan dated 14/05/2021 is appended to and forms part of this licence detailing where
the alcohol is to be displayed.
The prevention of public nuisance
Dispersal
10. The licence holder will promote the effective and quiet dispersal of patrons from the
premises by, where appropriate, requesting them both verbally and by signage to leave
and disperse in an orderly and quiet manner and refrain from loitering outside the
premises so as not to disturb nearby residents.
11. All staff will be trained to ask customers to leave quietly in the evening when necessary.
12. Staff shall endeavour to move customers on and discourage them from congregating
within the external area and the immediate vicinity of the premises.
13. There will be appropriate signage at the premises requesting customers to leave the
premises quietly.
External areas
14. No customers or staff shall be permitted to utilise the front external area under the control
of the licence holder between 21:00 hours and the end of opening hours on any day.
15. No loud speakers are to be located in any external area of the premises at any time.
16. The frontage of the premises shall be kept clean at all times.
17. The external area will be monitored by management at all times.
Smoking areas
18. Clear and legible notices must be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking
requesting customers to respect needs of local residents and use the area quietly.
Doors and windows
19. The roof light windows within the rear extension of the building shall be closed between
21:00 hours and the end of opening hours on any day.
20. All windows and doors will be kept shut during any indoor events.
Complaints procedure
21. A suitable complaints procedure must be established and in operation at the premises.
22. All staff must be familiar with the procedure and any complaint made in respect of the
premises must be investigated and remedied so far as is reasonably practicable to
prevent public nuisance.
Collection of waste and deliveries
23. No waste shall be collected from or deliveries made to the premises between 23:00 hours
and 07:00 hours, including the removal outside of empty bottles, waste or kegs.
Staffing, training
24. The licence holder shall ensure that all employees are made aware of the conditions
attached to this licence through induction and refresher training procedures.
Light pollution
25. Lighting shall be installed in such a way as not to cause a disturbance or nuisance to
nearby residents.

A29
The protection of children from harm
Age verification – challenge 25
26. The premises will operate a challenge 25 policy.
a) Evidence of age in the form of photographic identification (ID) shall be requested from
any person appearing to those selling or supplying alcohol to be under the age of 25 and
who is attempting to buy alcohol.
b) Acceptable identification for the purpose of this condition is that issued by a government
agency bearing a holographic mark with a photograph and date of birth, or the Proof of
Age Standards Scheme (PASS) approved age cards.
c) Notices shall be strategically and prominently placed at points of sale advising customers
that they may be asked to provide evidence of age.
d) A refusals book to record every instance that sales of alcohol are refused shall be
maintained.
e) The refusals book shall document the date and time a refusal of sale is made and the
member of staff refusing the sale.
f) The refusal book shall be available for inspection by the police or authorised local
authority officers.
Notices, sales to children
27. Notices shall be strategically and prominently placed on the premises detailing the
restrictions on sales to children.
Alcohol delivery
28. All sales of alcohol for delivery must be paid at the time of ordering using a debit or credit
card.
29. At the time an order including alcohol is placed, a declaration will be required from the
person placing the order confirming that they are 18 years of age or older. Service must
be declined to any person who does not sign the declaration.
30. Prior to completing the order, the customer is informed that on delivery an acceptable
form of photographic ID proving that they are 18 years of age or over will be required.
31. All delivery persons must be aged 18 years or more.
32. The alcohol must be packaged separately from goods that aren’t subject to age related
sales, so that it can easily be retrieved to prevent an illegal sale.
33. Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name and address of the
customer) shall be kept at the licensed premises and must be shown on the printout
despatched with the order.
34. All delivery drivers and riders must allow any police or authorised local authority officers
to inspect any alcohol or order details on request.
35. The delivery of alcohol shall be made only to a residential or business address and the
customer to be clearly resident inside the building. The delivery of alcohol will not be
made or completed to a person in a public place (for example a street corner, park or
bus stop).
36. The person taking the order and /or making the delivery must ensure that the recipient
is 18 years of age. A check shall be made to ensure the person accepting the delivery
has the debit/credit card used for the purchase. If they appear under 25 years of age,
photographic ID will be required before the alcohol is handed over. Examples of
appropriate ID include a passport, photographic driving licence, military ID and the Proof
of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) approved age cards.
37. Where a third party courier is used to supply alcohol, they will be instructed to provide
an age verification service or adopt a policy of checking age and ID at the time of delivery.
The courier must adopt a policy of not allowing minors to sign for and accept deliveries.
A record of all couriers used and the system that they use to verify age will be kept and
produced upon request from the police or authorised local authority officers.

A30
Staffing, training
38. All staff shall be trained before they are allowed to sell any alcohol to the public.
a) Records of staff training along with any training material used must be kept by the
Designated Premises Supervisor or Premises Licence Holder.
b) All training records shall be signed by the trainer and trainee in respect of training
received.
c) The premises licence holder shall implement a training manual and all members of
staff shall be suitably trained in underage sales prevention before making any sales
of alcohol.
d) Refresher training shall be carried out every six months for all staff and documented
within the training records.
e) The training records shall be available for inspection by the police or authorised local
authority officers.
Refusals
39. A refusal book will be maintained and made available to the Police and to an authorised
officer of the Local Authority upon request.
40. The refusals book shall document the date and time a refusal of sale is made and the
member of staff refusing the sale.
41. The log shall include the address to which alcohol was delivered but the sale refused,
the reason(s) for refusal and a description of the individuals involved.
42. The log will be checked and signed by the Designated Premises Supervisor on a weekly
basis.

20/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Taksim Restaurant planning application

A31

ANNEX 4
RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Taksim Restaurant planning application
1 message
20 May 2021 at 12:51
To: "licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Hello,
I live at
. I have been made aware that a planning application has been sent
to the council from Taksim Restaurant as they want to serve alcohol until 1am every day.
I would like to strongly object to this. Our street already suffers from antisocial behaviour with people drinking outside
the off licences on the corner and littering. I don't want to hear drunk people walking down the street too and risk them
waking up our young children.
Kind regards

Get Outlook for Android

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0y67STv3zHce2T-X3JP-HZXDvKnzmYWU0aHAuyxh2F7cbJG/u/0? k=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/1

A32

20/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Taksim Lounge Restaurant, 78 Burlington Road - license application objection

A33

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Taksim Lounge Restaurant, 78 Burlington Road - license application objection
1 message
20 May 2021 at 13:07
To: "licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Dear Sir or Madam,

I strongly object to the application for Taksim Lounge, 78 Burlington Road, KT3 4NY, to sell alcohol and play recorded
music until 01:00, Monday to Sunday.

I am a resident of

a residential street with many families with small children (of which we are one).

Customers from Taksim Lounge already disturb our sleep as they very noisily come back to their cars parked in the
street, carrying on the their socialising on the pavement metres from my bedroom window, and on occasion sitting in
their cars playing loud music. The idea of this happening at 01:30 rather than 23:30 makes me feel physically sick
with worry about endless nights of disturbed sleep.

Loud music can also be heard from the Taksim premises already, disturbing any peace outdoors. Again, if this was
extended to 1 am it would be horrific.

I do hope you will take the concerns of local residents seriously.

Yours faithfully,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0y67STv3zHce2T-X3JP-HZXDvKnzmYWU0aHAuyxh2F7cbJG/u/0? k=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/1

A34

20/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Taksim lounge 78 Burlington rd

A35

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Taksim lounge 78 Burlington rd
1 message
20 May 2021 at 17:03
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Dear Licensing Team,
The postal address is:
Regards
Sent from my iPhone
On 20 May 2021, at 16:31, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear
Many thanks for your email. In order to accept your representation I will require your full postal address.
If you could please ensure that it is provided no later than 11 June 2021.
Kind regards
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Thu, 20 May 2021 at 12:38,
Dear Licensing team,

wrote:

I wish to raise my objections to the application which seems to be an extension for alcohol license to
1 o’clock in the morning. As a local resident in a residential road which has a major walkway at the
end crossing the A3 we already experience loud drunken behaviour at all times of the night with
people shouting loudly. Having an addition late license premises serve drinks so late will only make
this worse.
In addition I would request that you check with the local police authorities to see if they followed up
on reports of Taksim lounge Breaching Covid rules.
I reported suspicious behaviour twice to the police. Once mid afternoon on a weekday where a group
of 6 people were on the phone getting directions on how to access The Restaurant from the rear
alley. They certainly were not workers or delivery people.
The second occasion was late in the evening when two car loads of people one driving an Audi Q5
surreptitiously went down the rear alley and again use the rear door to access the property. They
definitely were not working as one of the males said to the another male who had arrived in a
separate vehicle that she wanted to come along as well referring to the accompanying female.
Whether these reports were followed up by the police I have no idea despite requesting feedback
none was received.
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0y67STv3zHce2T-X3JP-HZXDvKnzmYWU0aHAuyxh2F7cbJG/u/0? k=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/2

A36

24/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Late alcohol license Taksim restaurant Burlington rd

A37

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Late alcohol license Taksim restaurant Burlington rd
1 message
23 May 2021 at 10:23
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Thank you, will revise my objection as follows.
According to our local PCSO website, outside of the Taksim restuarant is one of the two criminality hotspots in St
James ward.
We already have a number of people (mainly men) hanging around the top of our road at night drinking alcohol, using
the side alley ways as toilets and leaving their debris behind. This is also quite intimidating for women coming home
at night.
It is bad enough on our road being woken up at night by people coming home after a night out, shouting at each
other, arguing and threatening each other, so to allow people to wonder by the restaurant after midnight where they
can buy more alcohol and possibly food to take away will just cause this to happen later in the night and no doubt
they will leave debris for the residents to pick up.
We are a residential area having having loud music playing til 1am, will cause problems for those on shift work and
with children being woken by it.

On Friday, 21 May 2021, 14:38:33 BST, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:

Thank you for your email.
Unfortunately I am unable to accept your email as a valid representation in its current format.
In order to be valid, a representation must comment on the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion of
the licensing objectives. The licensing objectives are:
* The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
* Public Safety
* The Prevention of Public Nuisance
* The Protection of Children from Harm
Representations must focus on matters that the licence holder can have some control on. You must also focus on
how this particular premises, should their licence be granted, will affect you as a resident/business, in view of the
licensing objectives listed above.
Please read the guidance attached and expand on what your concerns are. Please note that the deadline for
representations to be received is 11.06.2021.

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0zTaUJjjPFY4UWBKkt8bue6mMxYLoUSTTFVGnNuY6sYoW8y/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&p…

1/2

24/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Late alcohol license Taksim restaurant Burlington rd

A38
Kind regards,
Marcella
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Thu, 20 May 2021 at 18:46,
wrote:
> I object to above having a late alcohol license.
>
> I live on
and we already have enough alcohol infused people shouting, aruging,
swearing at night whilst they are on the way home via the foot bridge over the A3.
>
>
>
>
Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/email-disclaimer)

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0zTaUJjjPFY4UWBKkt8bue6mMxYLoUSTTFVGnNuY6sYoW8y/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&p…

2/2

A39

11/06/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - 21/00423/LAPREM

A40

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

21/00423/LAPREM
1 message
10 June 2021 at 15:51
To: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Dear Mr Kingstone,

Re: Licensing Act 2003 - Application for a new premises licence - Taksim Lounge Turkish Restaurant , 78 Burlington
Road, New Malden, KT3 4NU

I am extremely concerned to learn of the above application to extend hours. At the moment our road has a fair
number of people walking down it late at night in particular because there is a bridge over the A3 at the bottom used
to access more roads on the other side. During the pandemic our nights have been peaceful but as pubs and
restaurants have opened up again we have had a return to a number of late night loud and drunk pedestrians making
their way along Queens Road. The fact that we have an off licence on the corner of Queens Road and Burlington
Road open until late at night means that we very often get groups of men hanging around at the top of the road
blocking the pavement and drinking for several hours at a time some days. This is not to mention whatever illicit
activities go on at the back of the shops on Burlington with suspicious looking arrivals and departures throughout the
day.

This is a residential area and people of all ages and occupations live here. We want to be quiet after 11 pm. If Taksim
opens later then our are will become known as the place to go when everywhere else shuts and it will become a hub
for late night entertainment and drinking. I understand that the outside of this particular restaurant is already one of
the two criminality hot spots in the St James Ward and think it can only lead to and increased potential for criminal
activity if it is open for longer hours.

I am also concerned that only a few local residents within the area were informed. My neighbours at
did not receive a letter - I told them.

I do hope that the voice of local residents will be listened to and that we are not going to have the quality of our lives
impaired by Taksim Lounge being permitted this licence.

Yours sincerely,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yvBzgDp1BvOV-L0M3xFO1cRqXYhy0Z3pq361XVpQqxZa7w/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/2

11/06/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - 21/00423/LAPREM

A41

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yvBzgDp1BvOV-L0M3xFO1cRqXYhy0Z3pq361XVpQqxZa7w/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

2/2

A42

A43

A44

A45

A46

21/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Objection to license extension

A47

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Objection to license extension
1 message
20 May 2021 at 18:33
To: "licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Hello,

I am writing to object to the proposed licensing extension of Taksim Lounge, Burlington road, New
Malden. They have requested to be able to be open for refreshments and to sell alcohol from 11pm-1am
every day.

This would disrupt the people living on the streets nearby, with additional noise, and rowdy customers
walking down our road. I would also feel unsafe if coming home late, knowing that the closest bus stops
are right near the restaurant, and that I would need to walk past these customers, with their outside
space. Being open until 1am would also make it the latest or one of the latest in New Malden, so that
when the Watchman closes, people would traipse to Taksim to continue drinking, well over their limits. I
would feel very unsafe if this was to happen, and think it would disturb and worry a lot of people. This is
a residential area, so it’s expected to be quiet and safe, not like on a main high street or busy strip.

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0y67STv3zHce2T-X3JP-HZXDvKnzmYWU0aHAuyxh2F7cbJG/u/0? k=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/1

24/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Taksim Lounge restaurant license application

A48

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Taksim Lounge restaurant license application
1 message
21 May 2021 at 15:25
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Hi Beckie,
My apologies, I didn't see the back of the letter.
We,
would like to
object to the requested provision of regulated entertainment and sale of alcohol for Taksim Lounge turkish restaurant,
78 Burlington road, New Malden, KT34NU.
The reasons are that we already have people trafficking at late hours due to close proximity of A3 and the bridge over
it. There are often drinking and smoking parties around Queens road closer to Burlington road, creating noise and
mess. Our fear is that alcohol availability in late hours will result in anti-social behaviour, and music allowed until 1am
would only increase the level of noise at night.
Thank you!
Best regards,

On Thu, 20 May 2021 at 16:37, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear
Thank you for your email.
Unfortunately I am unable to accept your email as a valid representation in its current format.
In order to be valid, a representation must comment on the likely effect of the grant of the licence on the promotion
of the licensing objectives. The licensing objectives are:
The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Public Safety
The Prevention of Public Nuisance
The Protection of Children from Harm
Representations must focus on matters that the licence holder can have some control on. You must also focus on
how this particular premises, should their licence be granted, will affect you as a resident/business, in view of the
licensing objectives listed above.
Please read the guidance on making representations attached and expand on what your concerns are. Please note
that the deadline for representations to be received is 11 June 2021.
Kind regards,
Beckie
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0zTaUJjjPFY4UWBKkt8bue6mMxYLoUSTTFVGnNuY6sYoW8y/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&p…

1/2

A49

A50

07/06/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Objection to new premise licence_Taksim Lounge

A51

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Objection to new premise licence_Taksim Lounge
1 message
4 June 2021 at 18:18
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
To whom it may concern,

Further to the letter I received in regards to the application for a new premises license at Taksim Lounge Turkish
restaurant, 78 Burlington Road, New Malden, KT3 4NU, I wish to express my strong objection as someone living

More specifically, the grounds of my objections are:
Taksim Lounge is already at the centre of a local crime hotspot, late night drinking wouldn’t improve that trend,
it would on the contrary most likely make it worse
Since Taksim Lounge has been opened and actually even before that, when being renovated, anti-social
behaviour, public nuisance and disorder has significantly increased, as the numerous reports filed by the whole
neighbourhood would account. That includes aggressive and provocative behaviour towards neighbours,
revving vehicles on purpose (from proprietor and friends) and late night disturbances.
They already regularly operate outside their advertised hours, have people sat outside the front after 9pm, and
has served alcohol when they didn't have a licence (according to appointed officer who was investigating
complaints), clearly showing a lack of respect for the law, the residential neighbourhood and residents.
I have purchased my home in a residential area, the additional noise would significantly impact the enjoyment
of my property as well as my sleep quality and quantity and in turn my overall wellbeing and mental health.

Kind regards,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yvBzgDp1BvOV-L0M3xFO1cRqXYhy0Z3pq361XVpQqxZa7w/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/1

A52

A53

21/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Taksim Lounge , 78 Burlington Road ,New Malden licence application

A54

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Taksim Lounge , 78 Burlington Road ,New Malden licence application
1 message
20 May 2021 at 17:51
To: Licensing@kingston.gov.uk
Dear Sir or Madam
I wish to formally reject the proposal for a licence to be
As a resident at
permitted for the sale of alcohol from Monday to Sunday 11 to 1am and also for the sale of light refreshments 23.00 to
1am.
This is a residential area with young children and older residents and the excess noise that this will create from music
and people leaving the venue is not acceptable for them or indeed any resident.
Regards

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0y67STv3zHce2T-X3JP-HZXDvKnzmYWU0aHAuyxh2F7cbJG/u/0? k=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/1

A55

A56

A57

03/06/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Extend the opening hours at Taksim Lounge Turkish Restaurant

A58

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Extend the opening hours at Taksim Lounge Turkish Restaurant
1 message
3 June 2021 at 16:03
To: "Licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <Licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Dear Mr Kingstone,
Environmental Licensing Manager
Environmental Health & Trading Standards Service
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
I am writing in connection with the plan to extend the opening hours at Taksim Lounge Turkish
Restaurant. I understand that they have applied to play music and serve alcohol until 1am
seven days a week.
I am radically opposed to Taksim Lounge's application to extend its opening hours, play
recorded music and sale and serve alcohol until 1am 7 days a week.
I would like to register my strong opposition to this plan. Taksim Lounge is in a quiet residential
area. If this licence is granted the venue will disturb all the residents in the vicinity and may well
result in drunk and disorderly behaviour on the street. I feel it is considering that any extension
of opening hours in a residential area would be totally inappropriate for a venue outside the
centre of New Malden.
These are the main reasons for my opposition to the plan:

- To prevent public nuisance as this is a residential area.
- There is the potential for danger to public safety as people leaving these premises late at
night, under the influence of alcohol could cause trouble on the street.
- We already have a very serious problem with late night street drinking and disorderly
behaviour on the corner of Queens Road and Burlington Road.
- I am a College tutor and teach in the evenings. I often return home between 9.30 and 10.30 at
night; at the moment, I have to walk in the middle of Queens Road because there are groups of
men drinking on the street.
Furthermore, the bus stop is right next to the local who want to extend the hours, this would be
intimidating.
I very much hope that you will not grant this licence.
Yours sincerely,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0xleRmYRnylh8mJMM3g0DgGa4bVEZbXPO08eOYmcp9BvIsL/u/0? k=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&p…

1/1

A59

A60

A61

A62

A63

25/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Re. Licensing Act notification 21/00423/LAPREM - Taksim Lounge, KT3 4NU

A64

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Re. Licensing Act notification 21/00423/LAPREM - Taksim Lounge, KT3 4NU
1 message
24 May 2021 at 18:18
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Hi Marcella,
Thanks for a link that is very helpful. I am surprised the additional 3am request wasn't included in the letter to
residents, I most certainly object to that!
Regards

Sent from my Galaxy

-------- Original message -------From: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Date: 24/05/2021 10:36 (GMT+00:00)
To:
Subject: Re: Re. Licensing Act notification 21/00423/LAPREM - Taksim Lounge, KT3 4NU
Dear
Thank you for your email. Your representation has been recorded and we will contact you again shortly after the end
of the consultation period.
I can confirm that a copy of the application is indeed available online for residents to consider, you will find it
here: https://www.kingston.gov.uk/licensing/current-applications-search-licences-complaints-reviews?documentId=
672&categoryId=20093
Kind regards,
Marcella
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk

On Mon, 24 May 2021 at 09:12,
To whom it may concern,
Re. New premises licence Taksim Lounge, 78 Burlington Road, KT3 4NU
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0zTaUJjjPFY4UWBKkt8bue6mMxYLoUSTTFVGnNuY6sYoW8y/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&p…

1/2

25/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Re. Licensing Act notification 21/00423/LAPREM - Taksim Lounge, KT3 4NU

A65
I am writing to oppose the application above for which I have
received notification. The request for music and latenight alcohol sales 7 days per week is totally excessive for a small restaurant in the middle of a highly residential
area and is likely to increase the levels of noise, litter, crime and anti-social behaviour already experienced by
nearby residents as a result.
The hours are later than larger establishments on the High Street and given the particular position of Taksim
Lounge between the High Street and the footbridge over the A3, is likely to attract people who have already been
drinking to stop for more on their way home. Queens Road in particular is already negatively impacted by drunk
and inconsiderate groups of people using this route after a night out.
The sale of alcohol for consumption off premises is wholly unnecessary. Our street and our gardens are already
used as litter bins for numerous discarded cans and bottles. And there are already plenty of shops in the
surrounding area open late for people to buy alcohol from to consume at home.

It is unfortunate that a copy of the application is not made available online to consider. I think it is reasonable for the
Taksim Lounge to be able to sell alcohol until 11pm for consumption on the premises and for music at a reasonable
level on Friday and Saturday nights. Any broader scope risks significant negative impact on the residents of
surrounding roads, including the many families with young children.
My address is
Regards
Sent from my Galaxy

Disclaimers apply, for full details see : (https://www.kingston.gov.uk/email-disclaimer)

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0zTaUJjjPFY4UWBKkt8bue6mMxYLoUSTTFVGnNuY6sYoW8y/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&p…

2/2

02/06/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Representation against application ref 21/00423/LAPREM

A66

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Representation against application ref 21/00423/LAPREM
1 message
2 June 2021 at 14:29
To: "Licensing@kingston.gov.uk" <Licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Cc:

Dear Sir/Madam,
I am writing on behalf of myself and
in relation to the application for a new
premises licence at Taksim Lounge Turkish Restaurant, 78 Burlington Road, New Malden, KT3
4NU.
We wish to object to this proposed application on the grounds that we have already incurred
significant noise disruption, including after 11pm on many occasions, from Taksim Lounge and
their employees and customers.
and even with the window closed we can hear
noise from inside the premises and often hear them racing their cars up and down the road.
Therefore we believe extending their licence until 1am as well as allowing music to be played
will further increase the noise pollution and disrupt our sleep and enjoyment of our flat.
Best regards,

https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0xleRmYRnylh8mJMM3g0DgGa4bVEZbXPO08eOYmcp9BvIsL/u/0? k=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&p…

1/1

A67

A68

A69

A70
Photographs of Location

Image capture September 2020 © 2021 Google

ANNEX 6

A71

A72
Secretary of States Guidance (April 2018)

ANNEX 7

1.2

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives
which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3

The licensing objectives are:
 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

1.4

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration
at all times.

1.5

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.
They include:
 protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance

1.17



caused by irresponsible licensed premises;



giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those
premises that are causing problems;



recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;



providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and



encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may affect them.

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
Licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no
need for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may
be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

A73

Crime and disorder
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety
Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with
the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding
relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important
role in preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly
licensed and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies
are not being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may
include making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner
agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be
appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying
firearms do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder. For
example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour
and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their
premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or
its customers. But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be
appropriate to ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to
ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute
over the terms of the condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and
town centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems
allow managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and
facilitate a rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers
and staff on the premises.

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises
supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be
the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the
premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind
may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be
demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular premises, poor
management competency could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public
safety.
The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work
with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder

2.6

A74
to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.
Public safety
2.7

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their
premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of
people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in
other legislation. Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and
other immediate harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also
promote the crime and disorder objective as noted above. There will of course be
occasions when a public safety condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health
more generally, but it should not be the purpose of the condition as this would be
outside the licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate
which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

2.8

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:


Fire safety;



Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;



Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts



Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;



Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);



Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;



Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises



Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises

2.9

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between
premises and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in
Chapter 8 (8.38- 8.46), applicants should consider when making their application
which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and
demonstrate how they achieve that.

Public nuisance
2.15

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is
appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences
and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the
promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible
authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on
persons living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around
the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will
mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

A75
2.16

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of
the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse
effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to
health.

2.17

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to
control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a
simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a
particular time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a
certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains
or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be
enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable
(see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public
nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific
premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid
inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable
to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to
purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

2.18

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in
certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those
living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach
of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact
that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant
representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most
sensitive period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night
and into the early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting
to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for
performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances,
conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate
to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

2.21

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in
anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits
from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if
they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside,
and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

A76
Protection of children from harm
2.22

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

2.23

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly
considered in circumstances where:
• adult entertainment is provided;
• a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in
the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);
• it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
• there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
• in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

2.24

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide
entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an
exhaustive list of what amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual
nature. Applicants, responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to
consider this point carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease,
lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific
incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong
and offensive language.

2.25

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times
at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to
ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their
premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

2.26

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to
be taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can
include:


restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

A77


restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;



restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;



age restrictions



restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;



requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and



full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities
are taking place.

Other persons
8.13

As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of
licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or
business entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to
applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences
and club premises certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the
premises. In addition, these persons may themselves seek a review of a premises
licence. Any representations made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the
representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be
considered by the licensing authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of
applications for reviews, there is an additional requirement that the grounds for the
review should not be considered by the licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter
9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) provides more detail on the definition of
relevant, frivolous, vexatious and repetitious representations.

Determining applications
9.9

It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any
aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that representation.
The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body
making the representation to amplify and clarify it.

Hearings
9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.
9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:


the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;



the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;



this Guidance;

A78


its own statement of licensing policy.

Hours of trading
10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises
can conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each
application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without
giving individual consideration to the merits of each application.
10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which
licensable activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that
this would undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it
with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.

A79
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (version 4 July 2016)
8.

The Council is responsible for licensing a range of activities related to the sale and
supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and late night
refreshments.

9.

In carrying out its functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority has a duty to
promote the following licensing objectives:





11.

As well as the statutory objectives, the Act and guidance support a number of other
key aims and purposes linked to the licensable activities that are considered to be
vitally important. They include:






12.

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises
giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy
recognising the important role that pubs and other licensed premises play in our
communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises
providing a regulatory framework for alcohol that reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers them to make and enforce decisions about the most
responsible licensing strategies for their local area, and
encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may impact on them.

The Council must set out how it will promote the statutory objectives and support the
other key aims and purposes in a Statement of Policy and this must strike a
reasonable balance between different and sometimes competing aims, including
widening the choice and appeal of licensed premises and the development of culture
and protection of local residents.

COMMENTING ON APPLICATIONS (MAKING REPRESENTATIONS)
50.

The Authority recognises that the Act, and the Secretary of State’s Guidance,
specifies what matters it may take into consideration when determining whether any
representation made is relevant. This will include a consideration whether any
representation made is frivolous or vexatious (as defined by guidance).

51.

Though not specified by the relevant legislation or guidance, the Authority will only
consider representations received in writing, be this by letter, facsimile, e-mail or via
our online portal. Representations must be made within the relevant time period
specified in the Act for the application type being considered.

A80
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
90.

The Authority recognises that licensed premises, particularly late night venues, can
be a focus of crime and disorder problems. Therefore, whether the premises make,
or will make, a significant contribution to levels of crime and disorder, and whether
the Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk assessment, undertaken by the
applicant, of the likelihood of crime and disorder occurring as a result of the grant of
the application is a key criterion.

91.

Applicants must clearly set out and explain in their Operating Schedule how the
operation of the premises will promote the prevention of crime and disorder. For pubs,
bars and premises with facilities for music and dancing (e.g. night clubs), a specific
assessment is needed as to how the risks of violence and crime in the premises and
within the vicinity will be managed.

92.

Where relevant representations are made, the Authority will tailor appropriate
conditions for premises licenses and club premises certificates. In doing so, the
Authority will treat the Police as a main source of advice on appropriate conditions for
particular premises.

93.

The Authority will carry out its licensing functions so as to promote the prevention of
crime and disorder, by ensuring that Licence Holders take measures to regulate the
behaviour of persons on the premises and patrons who are in the vicinity.

PROOF OF AGE
95.

In October 2010 a Mandatory Condition came into force requiring premises with
Licences authorising the sale or supply of alcohol to implement an age verification
policy in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The condition requires that the policy
must incorporate measures to ensure that individuals who appear to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and a holographic mark.

96.

The Authority recognises and supports the “Challenge 25” campaign, whereby
anyone appearing to be under the age of 25 is asked to provide identification to
demonstrate they are over 18, before being sold alcohol. The authority expects all
holders of licenses permitting the sale of alcohol to implement and actively publicise
“No ID – No Sale” schemes, and encourages applicants to adopt current best practice
on age verification policies – “Challenge 25”.

97.

Licence Holders are expected to include within their age verification policy:




98.

documented training procedures to ensure staff are fully trained in age
verification procedures, including induction and regular refresher training with
signed records kept of that training.
use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning notices being
displayed at alcohol fixtures.
the use of refused sale records, which are regularly checked and signed off by
the Designated Premises Supervisor.

The Authority supports and recommends that premises accept identity cards bearing
the logo of the PASS accreditation scheme, which aims to approve and accredit
various proof of age schemes that are in existence and thereby ensures that such

A81
schemes maintain high standards, particularly in the area of integrity and security.
Details of the PASS scheme are available from the Trading Standards Responsible
Authority
PUBLIC SAFETY
103.

Whether appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments,
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the relevant
responsible authority and the licensing authority that demonstrate that the public will
be safe within and in the vicinity of the premises are the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

104. The Authority must try to ensure the safety of people visiting and working in licensed
premises. It will therefore need to be satisfied that measures to promote public safety,
including risk assessments, setting safe capacities, adequate means of escape and,
where appropriate, CCTV are put in place and adequately maintained, if not provided
for by other regulatory regimes. As such, it is expected that applicants will
satisfactorily address these issues in their operating schedules and plans/drawings
submitted as part of the application process.
105. The Authority is not in a position to impose conditions on licences that relate to fire
safety legislation, for whom the enforcing authority is the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority [LFEPA]. However, given that applications must be submitted to
LFEPA, who may make representations on applications which are not considered to
be demonstrating the promotion of public safety, applicants are advised to make
contact with their local fire safety officer for advice regarding measures to ensure
adequate fire protection and means of escape prior to the submission of applications.
106. Whilst existing health and safety legislation will generally be sufficient to control risks
to the safety of the public in most premises, the Authority recognises that, in some
situations, statutory requirements may not be adequate, or be in place, to ensure
public safety. Where its right is invoked, the Authority may impose conditions
requiring the licence holder to take steps over and above minimum legal requirements
as may be necessary to ensure safety.
107.

It should be noted that conditions relating to public safety should be those that are
appropriate in the particular circumstances of any individual premises or club
premises, and should not duplicate other requirements of existing Health and Safety
Legislation. Equally, the attachment of conditions to a premises licence or club
premises certificate does not in any way relieve employers of their statutory duty to
comply with the requirements of primary Health and Safety or Fire Safety legislation.

PUBLIC NUISANCE
114.

The Borough has a substantial residential population and the authority has a
responsibility to protect it from nuisance. In certain locations, the increased
concentration of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation have adversely
affected local residents. Commercial occupiers of premises also have a legitimate
expectation of an environment that is attractive and help sustain their business. The
role of the Council as a licensing authority is to maintain an appropriate balance
between the legitimate aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs of
residents, businesses, workers, shoppers and visitors.

A82
115. The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of
the business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps which could be
taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are therefore the key criteria relevant
to this objective. This will particularly apply where there is residential accommodation
in the proximity of the premises.
116. The Authority will expect applicants to set out in their Operating Schedules the steps
taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public nuisance arising
from the operation of the premises or open air site under the licence.
117.

Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these risks
will be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting
a small number of people living locally as well as major disturbance affecting the
whole community. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, a reduction of the
living and working amenity and environment of interested parties in the vicinity of
licensed premises.

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
126.

The Authority supports the formation of family-friendly entertainment environments
and whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children from harm
(including moral, psychological and physical harm) is the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

127.

Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and implemented to protect children from
harm, having regard to the style, characteristics and activities of the premises and
the activities provided. The measures expected to be considered may include staff
training on how to control the entry of young people under 18 and the vetting of staff
who will supervise them. Applicants will have to give particular regard to these
measures in applications for licences involving:




128.

the sale of alcohol
children’s performances
attractions or performances likely to attract children

It is an offence to sell alcohol to children (under 18). There is a further specific offence
of persistently selling alcohol to children if sales are made on 2 or more occasions
within 3 months. Unaccompanied children under 16 should not be on “premises being
used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” e.g. pubs, bars and nightclubs.
In addition, unaccompanied children should not be on licensed premises after
midnight but before 5.00 a.m. Operating Schedules should consider whether there
will be circumstances when children under 16 should not be on the premises and
whether they were there for a specific purpose such as partaking of a meal or being
entertained by live performances and whether there were any specific aspects of
licensable or other activities taking place where children should be excluded e.g.
drinks promotions or particular types of performances or competitions.

A83
RESPONSIBLE RETAILING
136.

The Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to recognise the
responsibility that the retail sale or supply of alcohol brings in order to promote the
licensing objective relating to the protection of children from harm.

NEIGHBOURHOOD SPECIFIC POLICIES ON THE PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING
OBJECTIVES
1. The Authority acknowledges that licensed premises located in some parts of the
Borough may have a greater impact upon the licensing objectives than similar
premises located in other areas. The following summarises the key characteristics
and challenges within specific neighbourhoods to help applicants. The Authority will
therefore expect applicants to take these factors into account when considering
what to include in their operating schedule and they must be prepared to justify why
appropriate recommended controls should not be applied in the event of
applications coming before a Sub-Committee.
2. Applicants are advised that Responsible Authorities will also expect the measures
relevant to the business operation to have been considered, and it is likely that
where deficiencies in the operating schedule are identified, representations are
likely to be made.
MALDENS & COOMBE
3. The Neighbourhood is less dominated by premises offering alcohol and
entertainment than other parts of the Borough, with the main district centre being
New Malden. The Authority recognises that licensed premises do not have a
significant impact on the licensing objectives, but is mindful that applicants wishing
to provide licensable activities in this area will still need to consider, as appropriate,
the issues set out under Operating Schedule – Additional Considerations.
OPERATING SCHEDULES – ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
1.

The following section sets out a range of additional considerations and controls that
the Authority may have regard to, depending on the location of the applicants
premises, in order to ensure that the licensing objectives are met. Some of the
controls described may have greater significance and be given greater emphasis by
the Licensing Sub-committee as a result.
Door Supervision

The use of door supervisors at licensed premises play a valuable role in
controlling queues, undertaking searches for the purpose of preventing drugs
or offensive weapons being admitted and for ensuring any capacity limits are
not exceeded

Whilst all applicants should assess whether the provision of door staff is
necessary for their business, the authority expects that all Pubs, Bars,
Nightclubs and premises offering Late Night Refreshment to provide door
supervisors. The number of door supervisors should be identified through
risk assessment and with due consideration to the health and safety of door
supervisors, staff and the public.

A84


Where its right is invoked, the Authority will generally impose a condition
requiring door staff on licences for this type of premises, unless it can be
demonstrated that such a condition is not appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.
Applicants and licence holders are expected to ensure that a policy on
searching customers is devised and implemented. Searches of persons
bags, or in some cases pat down or metal detector body searches may be
necessary to prevent and deter the bringing into licensed premises of drugs
and / or offensive weapons. Door supervisors are trained and equipped with
the necessary skills to undertake this task, and it may be necessary in
certain types of establishments for conditions to be included that require the
carrying out of searches.



CCTV systems
 CCTV cameras are a vital asset to both the licence holder and the regulatory
authorities. Footage obtained by CCTV has proven to be a vital source of
evidence in detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises.




Overt cameras also help deter criminal acts, such as theft of stock, and
whilst it is acknowledged that the installation of CCTV may incur
considerable expenditure, the Authority expects all applicants and licence
holders to consider providing CCTV systems
The Authority expects that CCTV systems will:
 cover all entrances, exits, internal and external areas of the premises.
 Ensure that images are stored for a minimum of 31 days
 Enable images to be delivered to Police or Council Officers in a
recognised format upon request
 be adequately maintained so as to operate and record at all times the
premises are open (for crime prevention purposes, it is recommended
that CCTV systems are operational 24 hours a day, using motion
sensors during non-opening hours).

Capacity Limits

In pubs, bars and nightclubs within Kingston Town Neighbourhood, the
Authority considers it necessary to impose limits on the number of persons
that may be present in order to ensure public safety, prevent overcrowding
and enable prompt exit by persons in the case of an emergency, for
example.

The Authority expects applicants to have considered the safe capacity for
their premises and to incorporate this figure into their operating schedule,
together with details of their measures for ensuring that this capacity is not
exceeded.
Control of glass drinking vessels

Glass drinking vessels can be used as weapons and when broken can inflict
serious injury during incidents of disorder, not only within licensed premises,
but further away if such vessels are permitted to be removed from the
premises.

A85




It is expected that applicants will consider whether drinks should be provided
in toughened glass drinking vessels, and whether, after a given time at night,
drinks usually served in bottles should be decanted before service. Such
conditions can be subject to appropriate exceptions, for example in the case
of champagne bottles or wine sold for consumption with a table meal.
The Authority considers that all premises serving alcohol for consumption on
the premises should be subject to conditions preventing open bottles being
taken away from the premises.

Participation in Radio Schemes

Kingston First’s Business Watch radio link scheme can be used to connect
licence holders, designated premises supervisors, or managers with the local
police and the Council’s CCTV control room


Conditions’ requiring the participation in the radio link scheme, or similar
arrangements, is considered to be necessary for all premises forming part of
the evening and nigh-time economy.

Lighting

In certain premises where levels of natural light may be reduced,
consideration should also be given to conditions that ensure that electrical
lighting in any area accessible to members of the public shall be maintained
fully operational when the premises is open.

It may also be necessary to use conditions to control the use of external
lighting operated in conjunction with licensable activities. For example,
floodlighting to gardens and smoking areas should only illuminate intended
areas, and flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside licensed
premises must not cause a nuisance to nearby properties.

However, the Authority recognises the benefits to the prevention of crime
and disorder of lighting in certain areas of the premises, and any conditions
must be mindful of ensuring such benefits are promoted.
Management Practices

The Authority considers good management practices are essential, and
would expect applicants and licence holders to demonstrate good practice,
where appropriate through conditions requiring written documentation in
respect of:
- Dispersal of customers
- Noise management
- Drugs policy
- Queue control and Searching
- Control of deliveries and the disposal of empty bottles and other
refuse late at night
2.

The control of noise emanating from licensed premises, or occurring as a result of
the provision of licensable activities, should be considered by premises located
close to areas of residential accommodation. In particular:

A86






In certain premises consideration should be given to conditions to ensure
that noise or vibration does not emanate from the premises. This could be
achieved through a requirement to keep doors and windows closed, for
example, or perhaps to require use of noise limiters on amplification
equipment.
It may also be necessary to restrict the use of gardens or other external
drinking areas after certain times to reduce the level of noise likely to be
generated. For example, conditions may restrict the use of such areas by
preventing the taking of drinks or food into the areas after a given time, but
thereby still providing facilities for smokers.
The disposal of refuse or recycling generated by the operation of a licensed
premises can, when undertaken at the wrong time of day, cause significant
noise particularly in respect of the moving and disposal of glass bottles. It
may therefore be necessary to condition that undertaking of such activities
will take place at times that will minimise disturbance.

3.

A number of licensed premises, particularly those predominantly providing late night
refreshment, have the potential to affect the quantity of litter on the streets around
the neighbourhood. It is expected that any premises wishing to provide late night
refreshment, as their predominant licensable activity will agree to conditions
requiring the cleaning of the pavement immediately in front of their premises. The
same conditions may also be necessary for businesses that generate significant
quantities of printed matter, by way of flyers or promotions.

4.

The Authority recognises the importance of Pubwatch and considers the attendance
at meetings of representatives from premises contributing to the evening and late
night economy as essential.

B1

Appendix B

Licensing Sub Committee
6 JULY 2021
SUFI'S, 179 LONDON ROAD, KINGSTON UPON THAMES, KT2 6PA
Application for a Variation of a Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
Report by the Licensing and Environmental Compliance Team Leader
PURPOSE
To determine the application, by Public Hearing, following receipt by the Licensing
Authority of relevant representations.
This sub-committee hearing is to consider the application, having regard to the
representation and relevant guidance, with the following options being available:
DECISION TO BE MADE:
1) Grant the application as it currently stands.
2) Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
3) Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.
4) Reject the application.
INTRODUCTION
1. This application relating to Sufi's, 179 London Road, Kingston upon Thames, KT2 6PA
was made on 14 May 2021 by Stewart Gibson on behalf of Rameez Butt.
2. The application seeks a variation to their existing premises licence to permit the
provision of late night refreshment, Monday to Sunday, from 23:00 to 03:30 the
following morning, with the premises continuing to close to the public at 23:00
Monday to Thursday, and at 02:00 on Friday, Saturday and Sunday. After 02:00 on
Friday, Saturday and Sunday, late night refreshment will be provided through a
delivery service only.
3.

Relevant pages of the application form are attached at Annex 1. The current licence
is attached as Annex 2.

4.

The current and proposed hours of operation are laid out in Annex 3.

CONSULTATION
5.

I confirm that the applicant has advertised the application by way of public notice
displayed at the premises, and in a local newspaper. The application has also been
made available on the Council’s website.

B2
6.

I confirm that all Responsible Authorities received a copy of the application. No
representations were received from Responsible Authorities.

7.

In accordance with the Council’s Licensing Policy, 311 residents were consulted in
writing and informed that an application had been received. 1 valid representation
was received from Other Persons. The representation makes reference to matters
that relate to the Prevention of Public Nuisance licensing objective. Copy of the
representation is attached at Annex 5.

LOCATION
8.

A map showing the approximate location of the premises is attached as Annex 6,
with photographs attached as Annex 7.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES
9.

In considering this report the Sub-Committee is required to take into account the
Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003,
and our Licensing Policy (relevant paragraphs are produced at Annex 8) and the
licensing objectives of:





The prevention of crime and disorder.
Public safety.
The prevention of public nuisance.
The protection of children from harm

DETERMINATION
10.

In making their decision in respect of the application, the Sub-Committee must have
regard to Statutory Guidance and the Councils’ own Statement of Licensing Policy
as well as to the representations made and the evidence heard. However, the SubCommittee must disregard any representations that do not relate to the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

11.

The licensing sub-committee is asked to determine the application, having regard to
the representations received and any evidence heard at the hearing, in accordance
with the following options:


Grant the application as requested.



Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.



Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which
the application relates.



Reject the application.

CONDITIONS
12.

Mandatory Conditions. If granted, the licence would be subject to the mandatory
conditions laid down in the licensing Act 2003 (this information will be available to the
Sub-Committee meeting).

B3
13.

Conditions arising from applicant’s Operating Schedule. In applying for a licence,
the applicant is required to complete an operating schedule. This describes the steps
the applicant proposes to take in order to promote the licensing objectives if the
application is granted. These steps which are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives will become conditions if the application is granted and are shown
in Annex 4. These conditions are in addition to those already on the existing licence.
However, the Sub-Committee must, having regard to the representations made,
modify these conditions, if it considers that such a step is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

14.

The applicant is not seeking to remove any of the existing conditions of the licence.
A copy of the current licence is included in Annex 2.

CONTENT OF ANNEXES TO THIS REPORT
Annex 1
Annex 2
Annex 3
Annex 4
Annex 5
Annex 6
Annex 7
Annex 8

Application Form
Current premises licence
Proposed hours of operation
Conditions arising from applicants Operating Schedule
Representations from Other Parties
Location Plan
Photographs of Location
Excerpts from Secretary of State’s Guidance and Kingston’s Statement of
Licensing Policy

BACKGROUND papers are held by Marcella Basso, Environmental Protection Officer 020 8547 5080, marcella.basso@kingston.gov.uk

B4

B5

B6

B7

B8

B9

B10

B11

B12

B13
Continued from previous page...

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT
In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

B14

B15

B16

B17

B18

B19

B20

B21

B22

B23

ANNEX 4
Conditions arising from applicant’s Operating Schedule
The prevention of crime & disorder
Closed-circuit television
1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive closed-circuit television system
(CCTV).
a) All entry and exit points must be covered, enabling frontal identification of every
person entering in any light condition.
b) The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open.
c) All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time
stamping.
d) Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon request by the
Police or authorised officer of the Council.
e) A staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be in
the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able
to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or
data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum of
24 hours from the initial request.
f) Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises
will ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV system, and
will be able to download selected footage onto a disk/USB stick for the Police or
authorised officers of the Local Authority or UK Border Agency without difficulty, delay
or charge.
g) Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local
Authority immediately and remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices
shall be kept on site for at least 12 months and be readily available to be viewed by
all authorised persons upon request.
h) Notices shall be prominently displayed within the premises stating that CCTV is in
operation.
Incident log
2. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of
the incident and will record the following:
a) all crimes reported to the venue;
b) all ejections of patrons;
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder;
d) any incidents of disorder;
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;
f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment;
g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
Staffing, training
3. All staff will be fully trained on induction in their responsibilities.
4. Refresh training will be provided every 6 months.
5. Training records will be kept and made available for inspection to an authorised officer
of the Council or the Police.

B24
Staffing, staff records
6. All documents for members of staff shall be checked to ensure they have the right to
work in the UK. These records shall be made available upon requests to all responsible
authorities. All associated ‘entitlement to work’ documents:
a) must be logged and kept on the premises for the duration of the employment; and
b) must be retained for a minimum of 12 months after employment has ceased.
Deliveries
7. All deliveries of food must be made to a bona fide address, either commercial or
residential.
The prevention of public nuisance
Restrictions, delivery service
8. Noise nuisance will be kept to a minimum, with all deliveries leaving from the back door.
9. All deliveries are to be made with motor cars only, owned by the business, and parked
in their own car park when not in use.
Entry to premises
10. There will be no public access to the premises after 23:00 hours Monday to Thursday
and 02:00 hours Friday to Sunday.

25/05/2021

RBK, LBS and AfC (unifiedgov.co.uk) Mail - Re: Ref: Application 21/00416/LAPREM

B25

ANNEX 5

RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>

Re: Ref: Application 21/00416/LAPREM
1 message
25 May 2021 at 12:13
To: RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk>
Dear Marcella
Thank you for your reply and I have now read the application in full.
I would like to maintain my objection as in Section 16d there is no indication that cars only would be used for
deliveries as “motor vehicles” could be either cars or motor cycles. We have already experienced noise after midnight
from delivery motor cycles from Sufi’s and therefore extending hours to 03.30 seven days a week is unacceptable for
local residents on the grounds of noise pollution.
Also it states “with all deliveries leaving from the back door”. Sufi's back door is situated on Bridge End Close, a culde-sac. Clifton Road is the only route out from Bridge End Close.
Kind regards

On 24 May 2021, at 17:39, RBK Licensing <licensing@kingston.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear
Thank you for your email.
Whilst I understand your concerns, I would encourage you to view the full application which is available
on our website at this link: https://www.kingston.gov.uk/licensing/current-applications-search-licencescomplaints-reviews?documentId=672&categoryId=20093
In Section 16d), the applicant describes the steps he intends to take to promote the prevention of public
nuisance licensing objective and states the following:
"Nuisance due to noise will be kept to a minimum, with all deliveries leaving from the back door. All
deliveries are to be made from motor vehicles only, owned by the business, and parked in their own car
park when not in use."
If the application is granted, the steps described in Section 16 of the applications will become conditions
attached to the premises licence issued. In other words, should the application be granted, the applicant
will have to carry out all deliveries using cars only, no motor cycles, in order to comply with the
conditions attached to his licence.
In view of the above, please let me know if you would like to maintain your objection or whether your
concerns have been addressed.
Many thanks.
Kind regards,
Marcella
Licensing Team
Kingston & Sutton Shared Environment Service
Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames | Guildhall II | High Street | Kingston upon Thames | KT1 1EU
Tel: 020 8547 5080
Email: licensing@kingston.gov.uk
www.kingston.gov.uk | www.sutton.gov.uk
https://mail.google.com/mail/b/ALGkd0yvBzgDp1BvOV-L0M3xFO1cRqXYhy0Z3pq361XVpQqxZa7w/u/0?ik=feabbc07b1&view=pt&search=all&pe…

1/2

B26

B27

B28
Photographs of location

Image capture: September 2020 © 2021 Google

Image capture: April 2018 © 2021 Google

ANNEX 7

B29
Secretary of States Guidance (April 2018)

ANNEX 8

1.2

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives
which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3

The licensing objectives are:
 The prevention of crime and disorder;
 Public safety;
 The prevention of public nuisance; and
 The protection of children from harm.

1.4

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration
at all times.

1.5

However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.
They include:
 protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance

1.17



caused by irresponsible licensed premises;



giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those
premises that are causing problems;



recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our
local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;



providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and



encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may affect them.

Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
Licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no
need for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may
be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives in an individual case.

B30
Crime and disorder
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety
Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with
the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding
relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important
role in preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly
licensed and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies
are not being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may
include making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner
agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be
appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying
firearms do not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder. For
example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour
and crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their
premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or
its customers. But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be
appropriate to ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to
ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute
over the terms of the condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and
town centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems
allow managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and
facilitate a rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers
and staff on the premises.

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises
supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be
the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the
premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind
may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be
demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular premises, poor
management competency could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public
safety.
The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work
with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder
to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or

2.6

B31
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are
retained at the licensed premises.
Public safety
2.7

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their
premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of
people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in
other legislation. Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and
other immediate harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also
promote the crime and disorder objective as noted above. There will of course be
occasions when a public safety condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health
more generally, but it should not be the purpose of the condition as this would be
outside the licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate
which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

2.8

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:


Fire safety;



Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;



Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for example
communications networks with the police and signing up for local incident alerts



Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate first aid
kits;



Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through the
provision of information on late-night transportation);



Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;



Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises



Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises

2.9

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between
premises and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in
Chapter 8 (8.38- 8.46), applicants should consider when making their application
which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and
demonstrate how they achieve that.

Public nuisance
2.15

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is
appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences
and club premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the
promotion of this licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible
authorities focus on the effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on
persons living and working (including those carrying on business) in the area around
the premises which may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will
mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

B32
2.16

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of
the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse
effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to
health.

2.17

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to
control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a
simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a
particular time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a
certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains
or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be
enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable
(see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public
nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific
premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid
inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable
to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to
purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

2.18

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in
certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those
living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach
of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and
when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact
that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant
representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most
sensitive period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night
and into the early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting
to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for
performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances,
conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate
to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

2.21

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in
anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits
from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if
they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside,
and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

B33
Protection of children from harm
2.22

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

2.23

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to children.
Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which are
appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover,
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly
considered in circumstances where:
• adult entertainment is provided;
• a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in
the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);
• it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
• there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
• in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol
for consumption on the premises.

2.24

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide
entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an
exhaustive list of what amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual
nature. Applicants, responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to
consider this point carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease,
lap-, table- or pole-dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific
incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong
and offensive language.

2.25

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times
at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to
ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their
premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

2.26

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to
be taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can
include:


restrictions on the hours when children may be present;

B34


restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;



restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;



age restrictions



restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;



requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and



full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities
are taking place.

Other persons
8.13

As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of
licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or
business entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to
applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences
and club premises certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the
premises. In addition, these persons may themselves seek a review of a premises
licence. Any representations made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the
representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be
considered by the licensing authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of
applications for reviews, there is an additional requirement that the grounds for the
review should not be considered by the licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter
9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) provides more detail on the definition of
relevant, frivolous, vexatious and repetitious representations.

Late Night Refreshment
3.20







Supplies of hot food or hot drink from 11.00pm are exempt from the provisions of
the 2003 Act if there is no admission to the public to the premises involved and
they are supplies to:
a member of a recognised club supplied by the club;
persons staying overnight in a hotel, guest house, lodging house, hostel, a caravan
or camping site or any other premises whose main purpose is providing overnight
accommodation;
an employee supplied by a particular employer (for example, a staff canteen);
a person who is engaged in a particular profession or who follows a particular
vocation (for example, a tradesman carrying out work at particular premises);
a guest of any of the above.

Determining applications
9.9

It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any
aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that representation.
The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body
making the representation to amplify and clarify it.

B35
Hearings
9.37 As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives
that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed
areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written
representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the
applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and
should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.
9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:


the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;



the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;



this Guidance;



its own statement of licensing policy.

Hours of trading
10.13 The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises
can conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each
application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without
giving individual consideration to the merits of each application.
10.14 Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which
licensable activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that
this would undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it
with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.

B36
STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (version 4 July 2016)
8.

The Council is responsible for licensing a range of activities related to the sale and
supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and late night
refreshments.

9.

In carrying out its functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority has a duty to
promote the following licensing objectives:





11.

As well as the statutory objectives, the Act and guidance support a number of other
key aims and purposes linked to the licensable activities that are considered to be
vitally important. They include:






12.

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises
giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy
recognising the important role that pubs and other licensed premises play in our
communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises
providing a regulatory framework for alcohol that reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers them to make and enforce decisions about the most
responsible licensing strategies for their local area, and
encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may impact on them.

The Council must set out how it will promote the statutory objectives and support the
other key aims and purposes in a Statement of Policy and this must strike a
reasonable balance between different and sometimes competing aims, including
widening the choice and appeal of licensed premises and the development of culture
and protection of local residents.

COMMENTING ON APPLICATIONS (MAKING REPRESENTATIONS)
50.

The Authority recognises that the Act, and the Secretary of State’s Guidance,
specifies what matters it may take into consideration when determining whether any
representation made is relevant. This will include a consideration whether any
representation made is frivolous or vexatious (as defined by guidance).

51.

Though not specified by the relevant legislation or guidance, the Authority will only
consider representations received in writing, be this by letter, facsimile, e-mail or via
our online portal. Representations must be made within the relevant time period
specified in the Act for the application type being considered.

B37
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
90.

The Authority recognises that licensed premises, particularly late night venues, can
be a focus of crime and disorder problems. Therefore, whether the premises make,
or will make, a significant contribution to levels of crime and disorder, and whether
the Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk assessment, undertaken by the
applicant, of the likelihood of crime and disorder occurring as a result of the grant of
the application is a key criterion.

91.

Applicants must clearly set out and explain in their Operating Schedule how the
operation of the premises will promote the prevention of crime and disorder. For pubs,
bars and premises with facilities for music and dancing (e.g. night clubs), a specific
assessment is needed as to how the risks of violence and crime in the premises and
within the vicinity will be managed.

92.

Where relevant representations are made, the Authority will tailor appropriate
conditions for premises licenses and club premises certificates. In doing so, the
Authority will treat the Police as a main source of advice on appropriate conditions for
particular premises.

93.

The Authority will carry out its licensing functions so as to promote the prevention of
crime and disorder, by ensuring that Licence Holders take measures to regulate the
behaviour of persons on the premises and patrons who are in the vicinity.

PROOF OF AGE
95.

In October 2010 a Mandatory Condition came into force requiring premises with
Licences authorising the sale or supply of alcohol to implement an age verification
policy in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. The condition requires that the policy
must incorporate measures to ensure that individuals who appear to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and a holographic mark.

96.

The Authority recognises and supports the “Challenge 25” campaign, whereby
anyone appearing to be under the age of 25 is asked to provide identification to
demonstrate they are over 18, before being sold alcohol. The authority expects all
holders of licenses permitting the sale of alcohol to implement and actively publicise
“No ID – No Sale” schemes, and encourages applicants to adopt current best practice
on age verification policies – “Challenge 25”.

97.

Licence Holders are expected to include within their age verification policy:




98.

documented training procedures to ensure staff are fully trained in age
verification procedures, including induction and regular refresher training with
signed records kept of that training.
use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning notices being
displayed at alcohol fixtures.
the use of refused sale records, which are regularly checked and signed off by
the Designated Premises Supervisor.

The Authority supports and recommends that premises accept identity cards bearing
the logo of the PASS accreditation scheme, which aims to approve and accredit
various proof of age schemes that are in existence and thereby ensures that such

B38
schemes maintain high standards, particularly in the area of integrity and security.
Details of the PASS scheme are available from the Trading Standards Responsible
Authority
PUBLIC SAFETY
103.

Whether appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments,
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the relevant
responsible authority and the licensing authority that demonstrate that the public will
be safe within and in the vicinity of the premises are the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

104. The Authority must try to ensure the safety of people visiting and working in licensed
premises. It will therefore need to be satisfied that measures to promote public safety,
including risk assessments, setting safe capacities, adequate means of escape and,
where appropriate, CCTV are put in place and adequately maintained, if not provided
for by other regulatory regimes. As such, it is expected that applicants will
satisfactorily address these issues in their operating schedules and plans/drawings
submitted as part of the application process.
105. The Authority is not in a position to impose conditions on licences that relate to fire
safety legislation, for whom the enforcing authority is the London Fire and Emergency
Planning Authority [LFEPA]. However, given that applications must be submitted to
LFEPA, who may make representations on applications which are not considered to
be demonstrating the promotion of public safety, applicants are advised to make
contact with their local fire safety officer for advice regarding measures to ensure
adequate fire protection and means of escape prior to the submission of applications.
106. Whilst existing health and safety legislation will generally be sufficient to control risks
to the safety of the public in most premises, the Authority recognises that, in some
situations, statutory requirements may not be adequate, or be in place, to ensure
public safety. Where its right is invoked, the Authority may impose conditions
requiring the licence holder to take steps over and above minimum legal requirements
as may be necessary to ensure safety.
107.

It should be noted that conditions relating to public safety should be those that are
appropraite in the particular circumstances of any individual premises or club
premises, and should not duplicate other requirements of existing Health and Safety
Legislation. Equally, the attachment of conditions to a premises licence or club
premises certificate does not in any way relieve employers of their statutory duty to
comply with the requirements of primary Health and Safety or Fire Safety legislation.

PUBLIC NUISANCE
114.

The Borough has a substantial residential population and the authority has a
responsibility to protect it from nuisance. In certain locations, the increased
concentration of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation have adversely
affected local residents. Commercial occupiers of premises also have a legitimate
expectation of an environment that is attractive and help sustain their business. The
role of the Council as a licensing authority is to maintain an appropriate balance
between the legitimate aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs of
residents, businesses, workers, shoppers and visitors.

B39
115. The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of
the business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps which could be
taken to reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are therefore the key criteria relevant
to this objective. This will particularly apply where there is residential accommodation
in the proximity of the premises.
116. The Authority will expect applicants to set out in their Operating Schedules the steps
taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public nuisance arising
from the operation of the premises or open air site under the licence.
117.

Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these risks
will be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting
a small number of people living locally as well as major disturbance affecting the
whole community. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, a reduction of the
living and working amenity and environment of interested parties in the vicinity of
licensed premises.

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
126.

The Authority supports the formation of family-friendly entertainment environments
and whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children from harm
(including moral, psychological and physical harm) is the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

127.

Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and implemented to protect children from
harm, having regard to the style, characteristics and activities of the premises and
the activities provided. The measures expected to be considered may include staff
training on how to control the entry of young people under 18 and the vetting of staff
who will supervise them. Applicants will have to give particular regard to these
measures in applications for licences involving:




128.

the sale of alcohol
children’s performances
attractions or performances likely to attract children

It is an offence to sell alcohol to children (under 18). There is a further specific offence
of persistently selling alcohol to children if sales are made on 2 or more occasions
within 3 months. Unaccompanied children under 16 should not be on “premises being
used exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” e.g. pubs, bars and nightclubs.
In addition, unaccompanied children should not be on licensed premises after
midnight but before 5.00 a.m. Operating Schedules should consider whether there
will be circumstances when children under 16 should not be on the premises and
whether they were there for a specific purpose such as partaking of a meal or being
entertained by live performances and whether there were any specific aspects of
licensable or other activities taking place where children should be excluded e.g.
drinks promotions or particular types of performances or competitions.

RESPONSIBLE RETAILING
136.

The Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to recognise the
responsibility that the retail sale or supply of alcohol brings in order to promote the
licensing objective relating to the protection of children from harm.

B40

NEIGHBOURHOOD SPECIFIC POLICIES ON THE PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING
OBJECTIVES
1. The Authority acknowledges that licensed premises located in some parts of the
Borough may have a greater impact upon the licensing objectives than similar
premises located in other areas. The following summarises the key characteristics
and challenges within specific neighbourhoods to help applicants. The Authority will
therefore expect applicants to take these factors into account when considering
what to include in their operating schedule and they must be prepared to justify why
appropriate recommended controls should not be applied in the event of
applications coming before a Sub-Committee.
2. Applicants are advised that Responsible Authorities will also expect the measures
relevant to the business operation to have been considered, and it is likely that
where deficiencies in the operating schedule are identified, representations are
likely to be made.
KINGSTON TOWN
3. The highest concentration of licensed premises is located within Kingston Town
Neighbourhood, and in particular within Grove Ward. This brings particular
concerns in relation to the impact that the number of premises has upon the
Licensing Objectives and as such, the Authority considers it necessary for tighter
controls (as set out in Operating Schedules – Additional Considerations) to be
applied to premises in this Neighbourhood.
OPERATING SCHEDULES – ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
1.

The following section sets out a range of additional considerations and controls that
the Authority may have regard to, depending on the location of the applicants
premises, in order to ensure that the licensing objectives are met. Some of the
controls described may have greater significance and be given greater emphasis by
the Licensing Sub-committee as a result.
Door Supervision

The use of door supervisors at licensed premises play a valuable role in
controlling queues, undertaking searches for the purpose of preventing drugs
or offensive weapons being admitted and for ensuring any capacity limits are
not exceeded

Whilst all applicants should assess whether the provision of door staff is
necessary for their business, the authority expects that all Pubs, Bars,
Nightclubs and premises offering Late Night Refreshment to provide door
supervisors. The number of door supervisors should be identified through
risk assessment and with due consideration to the health and safety of door
supervisors, staff and the public.

Where its right is invoked, the Authority will generally impose a condition
requiring door staff on licences for this type of premises, unless it can be
demonstrated that such a condition is not appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives.

B41


Applicants and licence holders are expected to ensure that a policy on
searching customers is devised and implemented. Searches of persons
bags, or in some cases pat down or metal detector body searches may be
necessary to prevent and deter the bringing into licensed premises of drugs
and / or offensive weapons. Door supervisors are trained and equipped with
the necessary skills to undertake this task, and it may be necessary in
certain types of establishments for conditions to be included that require the
carrying out of searches.

CCTV systems
 CCTV cameras are a vital asset to both the licence holder and the regulatory
authorities. Footage obtained by CCTV has proven to be a vital source of
evidence in detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises.




Overt cameras also help deter criminal acts, such as theft of stock, and
whilst it is acknowledged that the installation of CCTV may incur
considerable expenditure, the Authority expects all applicants and licence
holders to consider providing CCTV systems
The Authority expects that CCTV systems will:
 cover all entrances, exits, internal and external areas of the premises.
 Ensure that images are stored for a minimum of 31 days
 Enable images to be delivered to Police or Council Officers in a
recognised format upon request
 be adequately maintained so as to operate and record at all times the
premises are open (for crime prevention purposes, it is recommended
that CCTV systems are operational 24 hours a day, using motion
sensors during non-opening hours).

Capacity Limits

In pubs, bars and nightclubs within Kingston Town Neighbourhood, the
Authority considers it necessary to impose limits on the number of persons
that may be present in order to ensure public safety, prevent overcrowding
and enable prompt exit by persons in the case of an emergency, for
example.

The Authority expects applicants to have considered the safe capacity for
their premises and to incorporate this figure into their operating schedule,
together with details of their measures for ensuring that this capacity is not
exceeded.
Control of glass drinking vessels

Glass drinking vessels can be used as weapons and when broken can inflict
serious injury during incidents of disorder, not only within licensed premises,
but further away if such vessels are permitted to be removed from the
premises.

It is expected that applicants will consider whether drinks should be provided
in toughened glass drinking vessels, and whether, after a given time at night,
drinks usually served in bottles should be decanted before service. Such

B42



conditions can be subject to appropriate exceptions, for example in the case
of champagne bottles or wine sold for consumption with a table meal.
The Authority considers that all premises serving alcohol for consumption on
the premises should be subject to conditions preventing open bottles being
taken away from the premises.

Participation in Radio Schemes

Kingston First’s Business Watch radio link scheme can be used to connect
licence holders, designated premises supervisors, or managers with the local
police and the Council’s CCTV control room


Conditions’ requiring the participation in the radio link scheme, or similar
arrangements, is considered to be necessary for all premises forming part of
the evening and nigh-time economy.

Lighting

In certain premises where levels of natural light may be reduced,
consideration should also be given to conditions that ensure that electrical
lighting in any area accessible to members of the public shall be maintained
fully operational when the premises is open.

It may also be necessary to use conditions to control the use of external
lighting operated in conjunction with licensable activities. For example,
floodlighting to gardens and smoking areas should only illuminate intended
areas, and flashing or particularly bright lights on or outside licensed
premises must not cause a nuisance to nearby properties.

However, the Authority recognises the benefits to the prevention of crime
and disorder of lighting in certain areas of the premises, and any conditions
must be mindful of ensuring such benefits are promoted.
Management Practices

The Authority considers good management practices are essential, and
would expect applicants and licence holders to demonstrate good practice,
where appropriate through conditions requiring written documentation in
respect of:
- Dispersal of customers
- Noise management
- Drugs policy
- Queue control and Searching
- Control of deliveries and the disposal of empty bottles and other
refuse late at night
2.

The control of noise emanating from licensed premises, or occurring as a result of
the provision of licensable activities, should be considered by premises located
close to areas of residential accommodation. In particular:


In certain premises consideration should be given to conditions to ensure
that noise or vibration does not emanate from the premises. This could be
achieved through a requirement to keep doors and windows closed, for

B43





example, or perhaps to require use of noise limiters on amplification
equipment.
It may also be necessary to restrict the use of gardens or other external
drinking areas after certain times to reduce the level of noise likely to be
generated. For example, conditions may restrict the use of such areas by
preventing the taking of drinks or food into the areas after a given time, but
thereby still providing facilities for smokers.
The disposal of refuse or recycling generated by the operation of a licensed
premises can, when undertaken at the wrong time of day, cause significant
noise particularly in respect of the moving and disposal of glass bottles. It
may therefore be necessary to condition that undertaking of such activities
will take place at times that will minimise disturbance.

3.

A number of licensed premises, particularly those predominantly providing late night
refreshment, have the potential to affect the quantity of litter on the streets around
the neighbourhood. It is expected that any premises wishing to provide late night
refreshment, as their predominant licensable activity will agree to conditions
requiring the cleaning of the pavement immediately in front of their premises. The
same conditions may also be necessary for businesses that generate significant
quantities of printed matter, by way of flyers or promotions.

4.

The Authority recognises the importance of Pubwatch and considers the attendance
at meetings of representatives from premises contributing to the evening and late
night economy as essential.

